
 

1 

 

  

Meeting of the Board of Directors  
    March 24, 2025 - 1:30 p.m. 

THEA Headquarters  
1104 E. Twiggs Street  

First Floor Board Room  
Tampa, FL 33602  

For any person who wishes to address the Board, a sign-up sheet is located at the Board Room 
entrance. Presentations are limited to three (3) minutes. When addressing the Board, please state 
your name and address and speak clearly into the microphone. If distributing backup materials, 
please provide ten (10) copies for the Authority Board members and staff. Any person who 
decides to appeal any decisions of the Authority concerning any matter considered at its meeting 
or public hearing will need a record of the proceedings and, for such purpose, may need to hire a 
court reporter to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes 
the testimony and evidence upon which an appeal is to be based.  

I. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance  

II. Public Input/Public Presentations  

III. Consent Agenda 

1. Approval of Minutes of the February 24, 2025, Board Meeting 

IV. Discussion/Action Items  

A. Operations & Engineering – Bennett Barrow – Committee Chair – Brian McElroy, 
Operations Project Manager 

1. South Selmon Capacity Project Support through Procurement – Consor 

Engineering 

Purpose: To execute a task order with Consor Engineering for the purpose of 

obtaining environmental and drainage design permits as well as responding to any 

requests for additional information regarding Consor's concept plan designs during 

procurement of the South Selmon Capacity Project. 

Funding: Capital Budget - $113,946 



 

2 

 

Action: Request the Board to authorize the Executive Director to execute a task 
order with Consor Engineering in the amount of $113,946 to obtain the South 
Selmon Capacity Project permits and respond to requests for additional 
information during procurement. 

2. Segmental Bridges Asset Monitoring Equipment – Burgess & Niple   

Purpose: To utilize the services of Burgess & Niple, Inc. to install structural 

monitoring devices on some of THEA’s segmental bridges. These sensors will 

allow for ongoing monitoring of the bridge's performance in real world service 

conditions and provide data which will aid in the development of a long-term asset 

management approach for THEA’s segmental bridges. 

Funding: Capital Budget - $379,870 

Action: Request the Board to authorize the Executive Director to execute a task 

order with Burgess & Niple in the amount of $379,870 to install monitoring 

devices on THEA segmental structures and provide ongoing monitoring, 

maintenance, and reporting. 

3. Howard Avenue/Watrous Avenue Bridge Deck Evaluation – Design Services – 

HNTB 

Purpose: To execute a task order with our GEC (HNTB) for project management, 
evaluation, and coordination support for the evaluation of the eastbound and 
westbound bridge decks over Howard Avenue/Watrous Avenue. 

Funding: Capital Budget $159,951 

Action: Request the Board to authorize the Executive Director to execute a task 
order with HNTB for $159,951 to support the evaluation of the eastbound and 
westbound bridge decks over Howard Avenue/Watrous Avenue. 

B.  Information Technology and Security – Bennett Barrow, Committee Chair – Pedro 

Leon, IT Manager  

1. Access Control System (ACCS) Maintenance and Support – Task Order –
Kapsch TrafficCom USA 

Purpose: To monitor and provide service for the DYNAC software ACCS for the 
REL. 

 Funding: Capital Budget - $65,550 

Action: Request the Board to authorize the Executive Director to sign a task order 

with Kapsch TrafficCom USA to continue to monitor and provide service for the 

DYNAC software ACCS for the REL in the amount of $65,550. 

 

 



 

3 

 

C.  Legal – Amy Lettelleir, Chief Legal Officer 

1. Osceola County Tax Collector Interlocal Agreement  

Purpose: To allow customers to pay THEA tolls to the Osceola County Tax 
Collector’s office for the release of registration holds and to provide the 
procedures for remittance and reporting between the parties. 

Action: Request the Board to authorize THEA’s Chairman to execute an Interlocal 
Agreement with the Osceola County Tax Collector’s Office.  

V. Executive Reports 

A.  Executive Director – Greg Slater, Executive Director  

1. Contract Renewals and Expirations  
2. Director’s Report  

B. Chief Legal Officer – Amy Lettelleir, Esquire  

C. Chairman – Vince Cassidy 

1. Upcoming Meetings  

• Board Workshop – April 14, 2025 

• Board Meeting – April 28, 2025 

• Budget Workshop – May 5, 2025 

• Board Meeting – May 19, 2025 

VI. Old Business  

VII. New Business  

VIII. Adjournment  



III. 1. Minutes of the February 24, 2025 Board Meeting



1 

Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority 

Minutes of February 24, 2025, Board Meeting 

1104 E. Twiggs Street 
Tampa, FL  33602  

The Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority held a public meeting at 1:30 p.m. on 
February 24, 2025, at THEA Headquarters, 1104 E. Twiggs Street in Tampa, Florida. The 
following were present: 

BOARD: 

Vincent Cassidy, Chairman 

Bennett Barrow, Vice Chairman 

John Weatherford, Secretary 

Mayor Jane Castor, City of Tampa, Member 
Commissioner Donna Cameron Cepeda, Member 

STAFF: 

Greg Slater 
Amy Lettelleir 
Tim Garrett 
Keisha Boyd 

Raul Rosario 

Bob Frey 

Jeff Seward 

Shari Callahan 

Charlene Varian 

Chaketa Mister 
Gary Holland 

Felipe Velasco 

Emma Antolinez 

Pedro Leon 

Anna Quinones 

Judith Villegas 

Brian McElroy 

Lisa Pessina

OTHERS: 

Michael Garau, Kimley Horn 

Jim Drapp, HNTB 

Steve Ferrell, HDR 

Maddi Baptiste, Playbook 

Sally Dee, Playbook 

John Generalli, Wells Fargo 

Christina Matthews, WSP 

Scarlett Sharpe, WSP 

Hope Scarpinato, PFM 

Andrew Devenbeck, RBC 

Frank Leto, JP Morgan 

Alex Bourne, RS&H 

Scott Chase, Webber 
Scott Armstrong, Parsons Corp 

Stefanie McQueen, HDR 

Joey Roselli, American StructurePoint 
David Franklin, Quest 
Christian Bradshaw, Raymond James 

Scott Hooton, Neology 

Sarah Lesch, Playbook 

James VanSteenburg, HDR 



 

 

 

2 

 

 

 

I. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance  

Chairman Cassidy called the meeting to order at 1:30 pm, followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 

II. Public Input/Public Presentations  

There was no public input. 

III. Consent Agenda 

1. Approval of Minutes of the January 27, 2025, Board Meeting 

Chairman Cassidy requested a motion to approve the consent items. Mr. Barrow 
moved approval of the consent items, seconded by Mr. Weatherford. 

The motion passed unanimously. 

IV. Discussion/Action Items  

A. Planning & Innovation – John Weatherford – Committee Chair - Bob Frey, Director 

1. East Selmon PD&E Final Approval  

Mr. Frey presented the final approval of the East Selmon PD&E study. The limits 

of the project are from the I-4 Connector to east of US 301. Mr. Frey noted the 

study evaluated capacity, safety, and operational improvements. Improvements are 

needed to reduce congestion and connect communities.  

He briefly reviewed the preferred alternative and pointed out the benefits of the 

project, which include improved capacity, improved ramp operations, and 

improved safety.  

Mr. Frey noted that one of the elements of a PD&E is to ensure there are no 

disproportionate impacts on any communities or locations. He presented a 

summary of potential impacts: 

• No ROW impacts 
• No relocations 
• No potential historic impacts  
• No potential archaeological sites impacts 
• Minimal impacts to protected species or habitat 
• No potential impacts to waterways 
• Construction impacts will be mitigated 
• Noise walls proposed to mitigate impacts at two locations 

Finally, Mr. Frey briefly discussed segment priority and cost estimates by segment.  

The requested action is for the Board to accept East Selmon PD&E Study.  



 

 

 

3 

 

 

 

Chairman Cassidy requested a motion to approve. Mr. Barrow moved approval 
of the item, seconded by Mr. Weatherford. 

Chairman Cassidy referred to the project benefits and the projected improved 
capacity of an additional 28,000 daily trips mentioned earlier in the presentation 
and asked what that provides in terms of years. Mr. Frey noted it would extend us 
out to 2046. 

The Chairman asked about the cost estimates, noting they are in today’s dollars. He 
asked about the project timeline if everything goes according to plan. Mr. Frey 
noted he anticipates starting the project in five years and completing it over 12-15 
years based on prioritization. 

Mr. Slater added that the phases are prioritized based on when the traffic growth 
hits the need. Breaking these into smaller phases allows us to better manage the 
project and stay ahead of growth. 

The Chairman expressed concern about putting an estimate out there when the 
project start date is so far into the future. 

Mayor Castor asked about the method of forecasting cost and whether historical 

increases are reviewed and applied to the estimate going forward instead of using 

today’s dollars. Mr. Frey noted that we do not build inflation into the estimates. 

The mayor concurred with the Chair. She noted the projected 48% reduction in 

morning traffic mentioned earlier in the presentation is an impressive number. Mr. 

Frey agreed that the additional trips and travel times expected with this project will 

have a huge impact. 

Chairman Cassidy asked if there has been any consideration of using the extra lane 

only for connected vehicles. Mr. Frey noted it was not analyzed as such. Mr. Slater 

added that this is a school of thought that he himself believes in. As we transition, 

at some point, at least the interstate system will move into a connectivity of having 

one lane dedicated to autonomous vehicles as well as transit/high occupancy 

vehicles. Those vehicles will be able to communicate with each other, as well as 

with partially autonomous vehicles that are on the rest of the system, and creating 

not only the right kind of data analytics needed to manage the surrounding 

system/network but also providing those safety benefits. 

Mayor Castor offered up an observation she made while in Phoenix. Autonomous 

ride-share vehicles are used and once that technology becomes profitable it will be 

an interesting advancement. 

The motion passed unanimously. 

 



 

 

 

4 

 

 

 

2. Adoption of Resolution 676 – East Selmon Project   

Mr. Frey then presented Resolution 676. Persuant to Florida Statutes, Section 

348.68, THEA shall, by resolution, determine the route or routes of the 

Expressway System. Resolution 676 accepts the East Selmon PD&E by the 

Authority and approves the alignments described therein.  

The requested action is for the Board to adopt Resolution 676 approving the East 

Selmon Project routes.  

Chairman Cassidy requested a motion to approve. Mr. Barrow moved approval 
of the item, seconded by Mr. Weatherford. 

The motion passed unanimously. 

B. Operations & Engineering – Bennett Barrow – Committee Chair – Judith Villegas, ITS 
Manager 

1. Approval of Final Ranking and Contract Award for Construction, 
Engineering, and Inspection (CEI) Services – ITS Infrastructure and REL 
Grounding PDP Projects  

Ms. Villegas presented an item to approve the Evaluation Committee’s final 
ranking and authorize the contract award for Construction Engineering and 

Inspection (CEI) Services related to the ITS Infrastructure for East Selmon, West 

Selmon, and the REL Grounding Phased Design-Build Project. 

The requested action is for the Board to: 

a. Approve the Evaluation Committee’s final ranking for CEI Services. 
 

Firm Name Rank 

Rummel, Klepper & Kahn, LLP 1 

WSB, LLC 2 

 

b. Authorize staff to negotiate and execute a contract with the top-ranked 
firm. If negotiations are unsuccessful, staff will negotiate with the next 
highest ranked firm. The contract is subject to review and approval by 
THEA’s Chief Legal Officer.  

Chairman Cassidy requested a motion to approve. Mr. Barrow moved approval 
of the item, seconded by Mr. Weatherford. 

The motion passed unanimously. 



 

 

 

5 

 

 

 

2. CEI task to provide construction inspection and testing of the infrastructure 

rebuild on the east side of Lakewood Dr. in Brandon – KCI  

Ms. Villegas presented a task order request for KCI to perform field inspections 

and testing for the Lakewood Drive drainage project in Brandon. 

The requested action is for the Board to authorize the Executive Director to sign a 

task order with KCI for $82,302 from the capital budget to provide CEI services 

for the repair, remediation, and replacement of deteriorated infrastructure at 

Lakewood Drive in Brandon.  

Chairman Cassidy requested a motion to approve. Mr. Barrow moved approval 
of the item, seconded by Mr. Weatherford. 

The motion passed unanimously. 

3. CEI task to provide construction inspection and testing of the Drainage 

Upgrade Construction Project – KCI  

Ms. Villegas brought forth another task order request for KCI to perform field 
engineering and testing for the drainage project to upgrade THEA’s open drainage 
system between 22nd Street and I-75.  

The requested action is for the Board to authorize the Executive Director to sign a 

task order with KCI for $165,055 from the capital budget to provide CEI services 

for the construction of the drainage upgrade project from 22nd Street to I-75.  

Chairman Cassidy requested a motion to approve. Mr. Barrow moved approval 
of the item, seconded by Mr. Weatherford. 

The motion passed unanimously. 

4. Oversight Assistance on the Drainage Upgrade Design and Construction 

Project – HNTB  

Finally, Ms. Villegas requested approval to utilize THEA’s GEC (HNTB) to assist 

staff with the oversight of the design and construction of the drainage upgrade 

project to upgrade THEA’s open drainage system between 22nd Street and I-75. 

The requested action is for the Board to authorize the Executive Director to 

execute a task order with HNTB for assistance with review and oversight of the 

design and construction of the drainage upgrade project from 22nd Street to I-75 in 

the amount of $124,942 from the capital budget. 

Chairman Cassidy requested a motion to approve. Mr. Barrow moved approval 
of the item, seconded by Mr. Weatherford. 

The motion passed unanimously. 



 

 

 

6 

 

 

 

C. Procurement – Vince Cassidy –Chair – Amy Lettelleir, Chief Legal Officer 

1. South Selmon Capacity Project Shortlist Selection 

Ms. Lettelleir updated the Board on the selection process for the South Selmon 
Capacity project and presented the Evaluation Committee’s recommendation to 
shortlist three firms responding to THEA’s RFP to procure a design build firm for 
the project. 

She requested the Board to approve the Evaluation Committee’s recommended 
shortlist of firms for the South Selmon Capacity Project and direct staff to move 
forward with proposal evaluations and interviews with the shortlisted firms. 

Firm Name 

Middlesex Corp. 

MasTec Civil Superior Construction Co. 

Archer Western Construction, LLC 

Chairman Cassidy requested a motion to approve. Mr. Barrow moved approval 
of the item, seconded by Mr. Weatherford. 

The motion passed unanimously. 

2. Operational Back Office System Shortlist Approval 

Ms. Lettelleir also presented the Evaluation Committee’s recommendation to 

shortlist four of nine firms responding to THEA’s RFP to procure a firm for the 

design and implementation of the toll system operational back office. 

The requested action is for the Board to approve the Evaluation Committee’s 

recommended shortlist of firms for the Operational Back Office System and to 

direct staff to move forward with proposal evaluations and interviews with the 

shortlisted firms. 

Firm Name 

Neology, Inc. 

Quarterhill, Inc. 

A-to-Be USA, LLC 

Accenture, LLP 

 
Chairman Cassidy requested a motion to approve. Mr. Barrow moved approval 
of the item, seconded by Mr. Weatherford. 

The motion passed unanimously. 



 

 

 

7 

 

 

 

D. Toll Operations – Bennett Barrow – Committee Chair – Raul Rosario, Director 

1. UPS (Uninterruptible Power Supply) Battery Replacement – TransCore  

Mr. Raul Rosario noted that he is presenting four items today – all of which are 

related to maintaining the legacy toll system. He briefly discussed the need to 

mitigate toll system power interruptions at the toll plazas and headquarter 

locations. The current batteries are approaching their end of life.  

He requested the Board to authorize the Executive Director to execute a task order 

with TransCore for $70,958 from the capital budget to purchase and replace the 

batteries at all toll sites, excluding the southwest extension. 

Chairman Cassidy requested a motion to approve. Mr. Barrow moved approval 
of the item, seconded by Mr. Weatherford. 

The motion passed unanimously. 

2. HQ VxRail (Applications) Network Redundancy Install 

Mr. Rosario proceeded with an item to enhance the connectivity and redundancy of 

THEA’s HQ VxRail application cluster THEA must install a single distribution 

switch. Currently, the five VxRail nodes are connected directly to the core switch, 

consuming a total of ten ports and lacking redundancy. The new switch will 

provide redundancy on the system. 

He requested the Board to authorize the Executive Director to execute a task order 

with TransCore for $63,526 from the capital budget to purchase and install a single 

distribution switch for THEA Headquarters VxRail. 

Chairman Cassidy requested a motion to approve. Mr. Barrow moved approval 
of the item, seconded by Mr. Weatherford. 

Chairman Cassidy asked if there are any other applications or systems that need 
addressing. Mr. Rosario noted an additional item on the agenda needed to address 
redundancy. The Chairman asked if today’s actions, to the best of our knowledge, 
will mitigate any failure to recover on the system. Mr. Rosario replied in the 
affirmative. 

The motion passed unanimously. 

3. Qumulo (Storage)Top of Rack Switches 

The next item presented by Mr. Rosario was to install, configure, migrate, and test 

two stacked top-of-rack switches. The objective is to reduce the number of 

connections to the core switch from 10 to 4, while ensuring redundancy and 

scalability.  



 

 

 

8 

 

 

 

He requested the Board to authorize the Executive Director to execute a task order 

with TransCore for $115,496 from the capital budget to purchase and install two 

stacked top-of-rack switches. 

Chairman Cassidy requested a motion to approve. Mr. Barrow moved approval 
of the item, seconded by Mr. Weatherford. 

The motion passed unanimously. 

4. Toll System Firewall Replacement 

Finally, Mr. Rosario presented a request to install, configure, migrate, and test two 

new Palo Alto firewalls to replace the toll system’s existing firewalls, which are 
reaching end of life. The objective is to ensure a seamless transition to the new 

firewall system while maintaining network security and performance.  

He requested the Board to authorize the Executive Director to execute a task order 

with TransCore for $164,272 from the capital budget to purchase and install two 

new firewalls. 

Chairman Cassidy requested a motion to approve. Mr. Barrow moved approval 
of the item, seconded by Mr. Weatherford. 

Chairman Cassidy asked if this is one of the recommendations by the consultant 
that looked at our system. Ms. Callahan explained that it is to extend the life of the 
legacy system on the tolls network - it was not recommended in the audit. 

The Chairman asked if any of this equipment would be reusable. Mr. Rosario noted 
that the firewall and switches may be reusable. 

Mr. Weatherford inquired about the life of a firewall. Mr. Rosario advised it is 
around five years. He further explained that the current firewall will no longer be 
supported after September.  

The motion passed unanimously. 

V. Team Reports 

A. Toll Operations – Raul Rosario – Director of Tolling Technology and Customer 
Experience 

Mr. Rosario presented the updated toll data, beginning with weekly transaction for 
January 2025 followed by the monthly transactions, noting a total of 6,743,120 
transactions, a 3% increase year over year.  

Next, he touched on the average weekday transactions, year over year, pointing out an 
increase in volume in all plazas, with the REL up by 19%. Mr. Slater noted that the 
increase is a product of the slip ramps balancing the traffic back and forth. 



 

 

 

9 

 

 

 

Finally, Mr. Rosario provided the breakdown of processes tolls by transponder (69%) 
and Toll-by-Plate (31%). 

B. Budget & Finance – Jeff Seward – Chief Financial Officer  

Mr. Seward provided the Board with an update on the financials. He reported on 
revenue – 53% of total budget collected, which includes $3.5M uncollected revenue 
during the Hurricane Milton toll suspension. If that were added in, we would be at 
56% of what we anticipated. 

Chairman Cassidy asked if this was straight lined or if seasonality is factored in. Mr. 
Seward explained that what is reflected here is the total amount, but we do have the 
estimate by month, which includes seasonality.  

On the expenditure side THEA has spent 30.4%. He pointed out two new elements to 
his quarterly report. One is preservation (R&R), an amount that is approved by the 
Board every year during the budget process. The other addition is capital. These two 
numbers represent the total R&R and capital budget as far as what we account for as 
capital and R&R. As we prepare the FY 26 Work Program and OM&A Budget – we 
are fine tuning what is presented to the board in terms of planned R&R and budgeted 
capital improvements for the following fiscal year.  

Mr. Seward went on to explain the preservation expenditures to date, as well as capital 
expenditures.  

He also discussed investment income, reporting that THEA has collected 60.6% of 
what was anticipated for this year, and we anticipate coming in above what we are 
budgeting.  

Finally, he noted that THEA will begin the budget process next week and will bring 
forward a balanced budget for board approval. 

Chairman Cassidy requested that the next quarterly report include a column titled 
Budgeted Year-to-Date. Mr. Slater added that as THEA continues to develop its asset 
management program it will allow us to be much more precise with our R&R budget 
and on the capital side we have shifted our approach to ensure projects don’t hit the 
street before they are ready to lower the risk factor.  

Mr. Weatherford asked about the percentage for Legal/Human Resources/Procurement 
entry. Mr. Seward explained that it is included in the 97.7%. Mr. Weatherford also 
asked what falls under the Communications budget. Mr. Seward noted THEA’s 
contracts with Playbook and Vistra Communications. It does not include any of the 
communications support work for our capital projects.      



 

 

 

10 

 

 

 

C. Communications – Keisha Pickett Boyd – Director, Communications and Community 
Engagement 

Ms. Sally Dee with Playbook Communications presented the Communications update 
on behalf of Ms. Pickett Boyd. She reported that Mr. Slater was recognized in the 
Tampa Bay Business Journal Power 100 List, and Ms. Pickett Boyd was recognized by 
the Tampa Bay Business and Wealth as a finalist for their Women Who Win Award – 
Government & Public Service category. Florida Trend’s Transportation issue published 
a profile about THEA and Greg’s leadership.  

Ms. Dee made note of the USF Bridge Building Competition that THEA sponsors as 
part of the commitment made to Mr. Lee Roy Selmon when he gave his name to the 
expressway. The competition provides STEM opportunities and exposure for local 
students.  

Ms. Dee highlighted recent project fact sheets that have been posted on the website to 
keep the public informed and also gave an update on the South Selmon Capacity 
Project, noting community engagement meetings and communications as well as key 
outreach efforts, and next steps. 

Chairman Cassidy asked if we received similar feedback as we did with 301 where 
people who live outside of the area submitted comments. Mr. Slater said we may have 
gotten similar feedback when we did the PD&E, but this effort is very direct and 
targeted customer interaction, and we are not getting a lot of feedback from outside the 
area. 

Finally, Ms. Dee provided an update on the publicity metrics and social media 
followers.  

VI. Executive Reports 

A.  Executive Director – Greg Slater, Executive Director  

1. Contract Renewals and Expirations  
Mr. Slater reported that THEA has two contract renewals - one is the second one-
year renewal with Atkins Global for miscellaneous toll operations and support 
services; the other is the first one-year renewal with Burgess and Niple for 
consultant structures inspection. 

2. Director’s Report  

Mr. Slater reported progress on the work program and budget processes, as well as 
on both the SSC project and the OBOS project. He added that hurricane damage 
repairs are near completion after some delays in fabrication.  



 

 

 

11 

 

 

 

Mr. Slater pointed out that over the next 60 days the implementation of the new 
asset maintenance contract with new categories and higher performance metrics 
will be apparent. As the roll out begins, THEA is requiring the contractor to 
maintain: 

• All mainline sections of SR 618, SR 618A, SR 628A, Brandon Parkway, 
Brandon Main Street, Paul’s Drive Connector, Lakewood Drive (from SR 
60 to just south of Brandon Parkway) and Meridian Avenue 

• All Access/CD roads and ramps connecting to the Selmon Expressway 

• The Selmon Greenway 

• All stormwater management and mitigation areas associated with the 
highway corridors including compliance with permit requirements  

• The entire THEA structures inventory, including bridges, over-lane signs, 
and all high mast steel light poles. 

• All Selmon Expressway underpasses including vegetation, aesthetics, 
lighting, sidewalks, structural features 

The crew will also perform: 

• Litter Crew five days a week 

• Herbicide six times a year on all walls and poles 

• Monthly roadside mowing, more in summer months 

• Pressure washing the system once a year 
• Vacuum sweep every two weeks 

Finally, Mr. Slater reported that THEA has posted the Director of Operations 
position and has some great candidates expressing interest.  

B. Chief Legal Officer – Amy Lettelleir, Esquire  

No report. 

C. Chairman – Vince Cassidy 

1. Upcoming Meetings  
• Board Meeting – March 24, 2025 

• Board Workshop – April 14, 2025 

• Board Meeting – April 28, 2025 

VII. Old Business  

No old business. 



 

 

 

12 

 

 

 

VIII. New Business  

No new business. 

IX. Adjournment 

With no further business, the meeting adjourned at 2:30 p.m. 
 

 

 

APPROVED: ___________________________ ATTEST:____________________________ 

   Secretary: John Weatherford    Amy Lettelleir, Chief Legal Officer  

 

DATED THIS 24TH DAY OF MARCH 2025. 
 

 



IV. A. 1. South Selmon Capacity Project Support through Procurement 

Consor Engineering 

  



The initial task for Consor was approved by the Board on December 11, 2023 for the 
amount of $496,722. The intent was for Consor to perform a cross slope analysis, develop 
drainage models, and submit stormwater permitting to reduce contractor risk for the South 
Selmon Capacity Project.  

On October 17, 2024, an additional $195,937.47 was added as a change order to the 
original PO amount. This brought the total funding available to Consor to $692,659.47. 
These funds were added for Consor to continue their eƯorts in developing Concept Plans 
for Advertisement and initial permit submittal. This milestone has now been reached, and 
additional funds are required for Consor to respond to Requests for Additional Information 
(RAI) through the procurement process and finalize the submitted permits. The staƯ hour 
estimate for this work is $113,945.16. This would bring the total amount on this PO to 
$806,604.63. 

I requested an explanation from Consor detailing why the initial request for additional 
funds was not suƯicient. They provided a summary of what they believed was Additional 
Work outside of the original scope (shown below). HNTB reviewed Consor’s summary of 
Additional Works and took no exceptions. The additional funds requested are for Consor to 
respond to RAI’s related to Procurement and permits. If the project receives less RAI’s than 
anticipated there will be money left unspent on the PO. 

 



336.33$         305.80$           336.33$           203.55$        127.89$         114.21$         197.19$       203.05$          87.86$           
Cost/HR Cost/HR Cost/HR Cost/HR Cost/HR Cost/HR Cost/HR Cost/HR Cost/HR

ROADWAY
Cross Slope RAIs -
   Overbuild Details One update during DB Procurement 1 4 1,345.32$    1 18 2,055.78$     
   Roll Plots - Cross Slopes One update during DB Procurement 1 4 1,345.32$    1 36 4,111.56$     
   Overbuild Tables One update during DB Procurement 1 4 1,345.32$    1 18 2,055.78$     

QAQC 10% of total Roadway Design Hours for Review 1 8 2,690.64$      
Communications Assume 2 unannounced meetings over 6 months 2 2 1,345.32$    2 2 456.84$         

Assumes HNTB handles most Procurement
DRAINAGE

Drainage Design - Permitting
   City of Tampa Design RAIs Assume 2 more RAI's from the City and HNTB 2 10 4,071.00$    2 40 10,231.20$  2 8 1,827.36$     

SWFWMD RAI Assume 2  RAI's from SWFWMD 2 5 2,035.50$    2 20 5,115.60$     2 4 913.68$         

Drainage Design RAIs - Updates to be reviewed by HNTB; included in RFP Addendum
Model Updates Assume 2 RAI's with Updates 2 20 8,142.00$    2 40 10,231.20$  -$                 

   Roll Plots - Drainage Assume 2 RAI's with Updates 2 5 2,035.50$    2 8 2,046.24$     2 24 5,482.08$     
   Conveyance Calculations Assume 2 RAI's with Updates 2 5 2,035.50$    2 8 2,046.24$     -$                 

QAQC 10% of total Drainage Design Hours for Review 1 39 11,926.20$    
Communications Assume 6 unannounced meetings over 12 months 6 2 2,442.60$    6 2 1,534.68$     6 2 1,370.52$     

Assumes HNTB handles Procurement
ENVIRONMENTAL

Finish Permits -
   Tampa Port Authority Assume 2 more RAI's from the Agency and HNTB 2 6 2,436.60$      2 6 1,054.32$    
   SWFWMD ERP Assume 2 more RAI's from the Agency and HNTB 2 6 2,436.60$      2 6 1,054.32$    
   USACE Assume 2 more RAI's from the Agency and HNTB 2 6 2,436.60$      2 6 1,054.32$    
   USCG Assume 2 more RAI's from the Agency and HNTB 2 6 2,436.60$      2 6 1,054.32$    

QAQC 10% of total Permit RAIs Hours for Review 1 14 2,760.66$   
Communications Assume 6 unannounced meetings over 12 months 6 2 2,436.60$      6 2 1,054.32$    
Monthly TEAMS meetings 6 meetings over 12 months 6 2 2,436.60$      6 2 1,054.32$    

Job Classification Total: 5,381.28$    11,926.20$    2,690.64$      20,762.10$ 31,205.16$  18,273.60$   2,760.66$   14,619.60$   6,325.92$    

113,945.16$                              

Hours  Units Hours  Units 

GRAND TOTAL:

Hours  Units Hours  Units Hours  Units Hours  Units Hours Units Hours  Units Hours  Units 

Colin C. Kenny W. Anna P. Greg W. Sophia H.Task Name Work Needed

Job Classification
Proj. Man. 3 Sr. Engineer 2 Sr. Engineer 2 Engineer 2 Eng. Intern Eng. Intern Sr. Env. Specialist Sr. Env. Specialist Env. Specialist

Erik L Bill A. Andrew N. Eric N.



IV. A. 2. Segmental Bridges Asset Monitoring Equipment 

Burgess & Niple 

  



SCOPE OF WORK

ASSUMPTIONS

Rates per: Project Project Project Bridge Senior Bridge

Principal Manager Engineer Engineer Bridge Inspe Bridge Inspe Clerical

PP PM PE BE SCBI CBI C

SALARY RATES (Incl. Overhead and  Profit) $334.31 $258.18 $211.84 $195.29 $182.05 $135.71 $132.40

PP PM PE BE SCBI CBI C B&N TOT.

2 32 10 0 0 0 0 44

4 18 0 80 0 0 0 102

0 32 0 16 0 0 0 48

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

6 42 0 0 0 0 0 48

TOTAL (ALL TASKS) 12 124 10 96 0 0 0 242

SALARY FEE (INCLUDES OVERHEAD AND PROFIT) $4,012 $32,014 $2,118 $18,748 $0 $0.00 $0.00 $56,892

B&N EXPENSES $22,345

SUBCONTRACTOR EXPENSES $300,633

TOTAL FEE:  (B&N AND SUBS) $379,870

Burgess & Niple, Inc. Fee Estimate

West Gandy Extension (SHM with BDI)

Reduction of Additional Instrumentation Requested by THEA

MANAGEMENT

SUMMARY (ALL TASKS)

(6 Days On Site) for Initial Installation

(1) Maintenance Trip (2 Days)

Long Term (12 Month) Monitoring With Monthly Calls / Coord. data Prep

MOBILIZATION & KICKOFF MTG

Mobilization

COORDINATION FOR DATA



IV. A. 3. Howard Avenue/Watrous Avenue Bridge Deck Evaluation – Design Services 

HNTB 

  



HNTB PR 2025XXXX
Howard/Watrous Bridge Deck Evaluation (4/1/25 - 6/30/25)

Scope Of Services

HI-0XXX C-XX

Purpose & Need

The task work order is for support the small THEA staff on the Howard/Watrous 

Bridge Deck Evaluation assignment, including assisting THEA staff as directed. 

This task work order is for the period from 4/1/25 -6/30/25. 

Scope

Providing support for THEA staff on the Howard/Watrous Bridge Deck Evaluation   

as assigned by the THEA Project Manager. Includes evaluation support, 

coordination, teating oversite, attending meetings and responding to requests for 

information from FDOT and other agencies.



               SUMMARY FEE SHEET

ATTACHMENT "A"

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Tampa-Hillsborough Expressway Authority HNTB PR 2025XXXX

GEC CONTRACT NO. HNTB PR 2025XXXX Howard/Watrous Bridge Deck Evaluation (4/1/25 - 6/30/25)

HI-0XXX C-XX

PRIME CONSULTANT: HNTB Corporation

Sr. Technical Advisor Chief Eng./Planner Clerical TOTAL

ACTIVITY Sr. Proj. Eng. Manhours Salary Cost Avg.

Man Hourly Rate Man Hourly Rate Man Hourly Rate Man Hourly Rate Man Hourly Rate Man Hourly Rate Man Hourly Rate Man Hourly Rate By By Hourly 
Hours  $       173.37 Hours  $       144.54 Hours  $       102.19 Hours  $       79.95 Hours  $          61.62 Hours  $          48.21 Hours  $          38.95 Hours  $        22.66 Activity Activity Rate

Howard/Watrous Bridge Deck Evaluation $0.00 2 $289.08 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 2 $96.42 $0.00 $0.00 4 $385.50 $96.38

Total Total Salary

Man Hours [(MHxHR)] 0 $0.00 2 $289.08 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 2 $96.42 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 4 385.50$             $96.38

Basic Activities Maximum Limiting Fees (Salary Costs) 385.50$             

Cost Elements & Additives

(a)  2.78 Multiplier $1,071.69

Direct Expenses 4.37% 16.85$          SUBTOTAL (Cost Elements applied to Basic Activities Fee): $1,071.69

(d) Direct Reimbursables $16.85

Subconsultant-Tieraa(SBE) $158,862.04

Total Project Cost: $159,950.58

Maximum Limiting Amount: $159,950.58

Project Manager Sr. TechnicianSr. Eng./Planner Engineer/PlannerProj. Eng./Planner

3/7/2025



TIERRA 

March 4, 2025 
 
HNTB Corporation 
One Tampa City Center 
201 North Franklin Street, Suite 1200 
Tampa, Florida 33602 
 
Attn: Mr. James E. Drapp, P.E. 
 
RE: Construction Materials Testing Services Proposal  
 Selmon Expressway over Howard Avenue/Watrous Avenue  
 Bridge Deck Thickness and Steel Reinforcement Determinations  
 Hillsborough County, Florida 
 Tierra Project No. 6511-21-169-025 
 
Mr. Drapp: 
 
Tierra, Inc. appreciates the opportunity to submit the attached proposal to provide 
construction materials testing services for the subject project.   
 
This project, as we understand it, consists of performing services that will support 
a Design-Build RFP to provide widening along the Selmon Expressway from 
Himes Avenue to Whiting Street. Construction materials testing services are 
desired to provide information with regards to the existing Selmon Expressway 
over Watrous Avenue/Howard Avenue bridge deck thickness and steel 
reinforcement identification.  

 
Scope of Services 
 

The objective of this study will be to determine the existing bridge deck thicknesses 
and to identify whether there are one or two layers of bridge deck steel 
reinforcement at selected locations for the subject bridges.  
 
We anticipate the field testing program to consist of the following services: 
 

1. Conduct a visual site reconnaissance of the project site and coordinate 
maintenance of traffic. 
 

2. Locate reinforcement at each proposed bridge deck thickness check 
location using a Handiscan GPR unit. 
 

3. Perform bridge deck thickness determinations utilizing a power 
drill/mechanical core rig. We understand the Selmon Expressway over 
Howard Ave/Watrous Ave Bridges have 3 bridge spans in each direction for 
a total of 6 spans for each bridge. Tierra will perform 2 bridge thickness 



Construction Materials Testing Services Proposal  
Selmon Expressway over Mississippi Avenue  
Bridge Deck Thickness and Steel Reinforcement Determinations  
Hillsborough County, Florida 
Tierra Project No. 6511-21-169-025 
Page 2 of 3 

 
checks within each bridge span for a total of 12 bridge deck thickness 
checks.  At the conclusion of each bridge deck thickness check, the 
resulting hole will be filled with epoxy concrete sealant.  
 

4. Coordinate with Predictive Image Energy Testing (PIET) to perform bridge 
deck imaging along the subject bridges.  The purpose of the bridge deck 
imaging is to identify the bridge deck reinforcement using non-destructive 
methodologies.  A copy of the proposal received from PIET is attached and 
incorporated herein. 
 

5. Provide MOT and site access support to PIET to perform the bridge deck 
imaging.  Access support is anticipated to consist of man lifts and operators. 

 
6. Maintenance of Traffic (MOT) will be provided in general accordance with 

Florida Department of Transportation guidelines 
 

7. Draft the results of the bridge deck thickness measurements along with a 
location plan depicting the locations of the measurements. 

8. Prepare a summary report which summarizes the course of study pursued 
and the field data generated and incorporates the report to be provided by 
PIET.  

 
Service Fee 
 
The fee for the geotechnical services is estimated at $158,862.04 as detailed on 
the attached Unit Fee Schedule.   
 
Tierra, Inc. appreciates the opportunity to provide our services to HNTB and the 
Tampa Hillsborough Expressway Authority on this important project.  Please do 
not hesitate to contact our office should you have any questions or desire 
additional information.  
 
Sincerely, 

TIERRA, INC.   

     
Kevin H. Scott, P.E.     Larry P. Moore, P.E. 
Senior Geotechnical Engineer   Principal Geotechnical Engineer 
 
Attachments – Fee Estimate 

Predictive Image Energy Testing (PIET) Proposal 



IV. B. 1. Access Control System (ACCS) Maintenance and Support Task Order 

Kapsch TrafficCom USA 

  



Kapsch TrafficCom USA, Inc. | 2855 Premiere Parkway  Suite F| Duluth, GA 30097 | USA | 678-473-6400 | www.kapsch.net 
Kapsch TrafficCom USA, Inc. Confidential and Proprietary – Disclosure outside recipient without express written permission of Kapsch is 

prohibited. 

3/20/2025 

To:  Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority 
1104 East Twiggs Street Suite 300 
Tampa, FL 33602 
Attn: Greg Slater, Executive Director  

Subject: DYNAC Maintenance 10 month extension 

PRICING AND PAYMENT TERMS 

The Authority also agrees to pay the Consultant a Monthly Support Fee for a duration of 10 months in the 

amount of $6,555.00 per month, totaling $65,550.00.  

1. WORK INCLUDED

The following section outlines the scope of materials and services (“Scope of Work”) included in this
proposal.

A. General

The proposed scope of work is applicable to the following project sites:

 Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway DYNAC system as delivered by Kapsch

B. Scope Description

Maintenance of the Access Control System (ACS) and its supporting hardware. Items that are

included In Kapsch maintenance services are the Production ACS and Supporting Servers, the

Testing/Training Servers, and all Kapsch-provided software hosted by those servers and installed

on operator workstations.

The Maintenance Plan provided details on how Kapsch will maintain the Access Control System

(ACS) and its supporting hardware. Any maintenance activities described in this document will

occur as previously year-term agreements.

2. TERMS AND CONDITIONS

a) Terms and Conditions:  This proposal, if accepted by Customer, assumes the conditions of the
existing contract.

Yours Truly, 

Kapsch TrafficCom USA, Inc. 

John Breedlove 

Director of Sales 

cc:  Jessie Madonia, Steve Little, Jeff Gilmore 



IV. C. 1. Osceola County Tax Collector Interlocal Agreement 

  

















V. A. 1. Contract Renewals and Expirations 



 

  

                    
                 


	Dividers
	I 3.24.2025 Final Agenda
	IV A 1 Backup- Consor- SSCP Risk 2n CO
	JM- Consor- SSCP Risk Mitigation.pdf
	Fee Breakdown.pdf
	Change Order Backup 3-13-25.pdf

	IV A 2 BN-Agreement-Additional Crack Gauge Installation_20250312 (1)
	SCOPE OF SERVICES
	BURGESS & NIPLE, INC.     CLIENT
	Inspection Fee Template-20250307.pdf
	Fee-Estimate


	IV A 3 a 2024-2025 HNTB PR 2025XXXX HI-0XXX C-XX DS4XX HowardWatrousDeckEvaluation
	HNTB Fee
	Scope

	IV A 3 b Tierra Proposal_South Selmon Bridge Deck Thicknesses and Reinforcement_Howard Ave_Watrous Ave
	IV B 1  Kapsch TrafficCom USA Maintenance Scope Letter
	IV C 1 Osceola County ILA
	V A 1 Contract Renewals and Expirations

